
7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 544-4000 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, September 27, 2022 
6:30 P.M. 

If you need any assistance due to a disability please contact the Planning 
Department at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting at planning@ytown.org or 

734-544-4000. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 9, 2022 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. PETITION HAS REQUESTED ITEM BE TABLED TO NEXT MEETING  

HEWITT PROPERTY LLC - 617 SOUTH HEWITT ROAD (K-11-39-252-007) TO CONSIDER A 
SPECIAL CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT A VEHICLE FUELING STATION 
(PER SECTION 420 OF THE TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) AT 617 SOUTH HEWITT 
ROAD 

 
B. ROUND HAUS PARTY SHOPPE – 5970 BRIDGE ROAD (K-11-24-300-014) TO CONSIDER A 

SPECIAL CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT A VEHICLE FUELING STATION 
(PER SECTION 420 OF THE TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE) AT 5970 BRIDGE ROAD 

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 
 
7. NEW BUSINESS  

 
A. CIRCULAR INVESTMENT – 924 MINION STREET (K-11-10-280-016) –TO CONSIDER A FULL 

SITE PLAN TO EXPAND AN EXISTING PARKING LOT IN ORDER TO OVERNIGHT PARK UP 
TO NINE DUMP TRUCKS AND 27 DOUBLE TRAILER SEMI-TRUCKS AT 924 MINION STREET 
 

B. HEWITT PROPERTY LLC - 617 SOUTH HEWITT ROAD (K-11-39-252-007) –TO CONSIDER 
A FULL SITE PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A VEHICLE FUELING STATION WITH A 3,600 SQUARE 
FOOT CONVENIENCE STORE AND FAST FOOD CARRY OUT AT 617 SOUTH HEWITT 
ROAD 
 

C. ROUND HAUS PARTY SHOPPE – 5970 BRIDGE ROAD (K-11-24-300-014) TO CONSIDER A 
FULL SITE PLAN TO CONSTRUCT A VEHICLE FUELING STATION AND 6,000 SQUARE 
FOOT PARTY SHOP AT 5970 BRIDGE ROAD 

 
8. OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
A. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
B. PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
C. MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE 



7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-3943 
 

 
9. TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
10. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
11. TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
12. PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
13. OTHER BUSINESS  

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 



Page 1 of 6 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, August 9, 2022 
6:30 pm 

 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 

Bill Sinkule, Vice-Chair 
Gloria Peterson - Board Liaison 
Elizabeth El-Assadi 
Larry Doe 
Muddasar Tawakkul 

 

STAFF AND CONSULTANTS  

Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director 
Amy Steffens, Planning and Development Coordinator 
Denny McLain, Township Attorney 
 

i. CALL TO ORDER/ESTABLISH QUORUM 

    MOTION: Mr. Sinkule called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 

 

ii. APPROVAL OF MAY 24, 2022, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MOTION: Ms. Peterson MOVED to approve the previous Board Meeting Minutes. The 
MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Tawakkul and PASSED by unanimous consent. 

 

iii. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: Mr. Doe MOVED to approve the agenda as presented. The MOTION was             
SECONDED by Ms. El-Assadi and PASSED by unanimous consent. 
 

iv. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None to report. 

 

v. OLD BUSINESS 



Page 2 of 6 
 

None to report. 

 

vi. NEW BUSINESS 
A. PAINT CREEK CROSSING - PLANNED DEVELOPMENT – 1816-2130 WHITTAKER ROAD 

(PARCELS K-11-21-200-041, K-11-21-200-040, K-11-21,200-039, K-11-21-200-038, K-11-
21-200-035, K-11-21-200-034) - TO CONSIDER A REVISION TO THE APPROVED SITE PLAN 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF CHANGING THE LANDSCAPING. 

Mr. Iacoangeli addressed the Planning Commission and explained the amended 
landscape plan for the Paint Creek Crossing Plaza. The subject parcels about 21 acres 
and it's part of a planned development. It is a one storey shopping center (190,000 
square feet). The original site plan was approved on May 28, 2002. Mr. Iacoangeli 
explained and summarized the reason for the amendment; In 2020, the 34 original trees 
were removed without a site plan or approval to deviate from the original site plan. 

When the township contacted the shopping center once they were aware of the 
situation.  The shopping center admitted that they had removed the trees and stated 
that they were unaware that they needed to amend a plan in order to do so. The 
township and the shopping center have been trying to work together to arrive at a 
solution. The township had to legally contact the property owner and compelled them 
to come to the table to discuss how this would be remedied. 

What was agreed upon is the property owner would provide a landscape plan consistent 
with the requirement along with any other development outlining their new intention 
for the shopping center, and it was agreed that it would be reviewed and sent to the 
planning commission for their approval. The plan was reviewed by Carlisle Wortman 
Associates on behalf of the internal planning staff in order to be as objective as possible, 
and as far as looking at the plan and making sure that it complies with the township 
zoning ordinance. 

Mr. Iacoangeli stated that the amended site plan and the review letter from Carlisle 
Wortman outlining their review is been presented before the Commission. Carlisle 
Wortman review states that Whittaker Road plannings which are north of the common 
drive, they're proposing a mix of honey locusts, deciduous trees of Cynthia's, the 
planning is to provide landscaping along the length of the corridor frontage. That was 
what was approved what's being proposed are hydrangeas, roses and Foxwoods 
clumped together in order to not provide landscaping along the corridor or frontage so 
what they mean by that is what was previously approved were deciduous trees and now 
they're asking to use hydrangeas, roses and boxwoods. Morgan Road behind the 
shopping center, the original approved plan was for a mix of evergreens and deciduous 
shrubs and the plan that they presented as supplements with additional spruce trees 
that was approved as a part of the original landscape plan and Carlisle Wortman 



Page 3 of 6 
 

comment is that they are consistent with the approved landscape plan. Dean Dr, there is 
a mix of evergreen trees that are currently there and their new landscape plan is 
recommending supplementing those with additional spruce trees, and Carlisle Wortman 
comment is that they are consistent with the approved landscape plan. 

Carlisle Wortman review: 

• Roses are hardy and they should be replaced with a hardier species.  
• Include deciduous trees along the Whittaker Road at a 40 ft interval along the 

street.  
• Bradford Pears be switched out with an alternative species (Easter redbuds 

serviceberries Blackhall viburnums, wild plums, Ironwood Easter hop hornbeam, 
American hornbeam, Black Gum and yellow wood). 

Mr. Iacoangeli informed the Commission that the packet includes the illustration along 
with aerial references.  

The Commissioners discussed the purpose of the trees is to block the shopping center 
from the highway and they looked great during the flowering period. Mr. Iacoangeli 
explained that some of the retailers, including Mr. Grenadier (Owner/ Applicant:1816-
2130 Whittaker Rd. Ypsilanti, MI 48197) had issues with the trees because it was 
blocking the view of their business from the street. 

Mr. Grenadier explained to the Commission that there are still about 100 pear trees on 
the site and the trees were removed as a first step towards the major landscaping 
overhaul of the creek, the property was approximately 20 years old with overgrown 
trees and they were directly under the power wires. He stated that his goal is to beautify 
the property, so that the shoppers and stores would want to do business there. A 
complete redevelopment of the entire landscaping was created by the landscaper who 
gave the shopping center an unbelievable look. 

Mr. Grenadier shared his concern whether the suggestions made by Carlisle Wortman 
are feasible to have trees grown under the power wires. 

Ms. Peterson inquired with Mr. Grenadier about him not being satisfied with the 
recommendations made by Carlisle Wortman; Mr. Iacoangeli responded by stating that 
Carlisle Wortman did the review and has the count of tree stumps when they were cut 
down as a part of trying to arrive at the overall cost involved. Carlisle Wortman is aware 
of the power lines because they surveyed all the tree stumps to find out how many and 
how big they were at the time they were all cut down. The planning department 
became aware of this situation when calls were received from the township residents 
about the missing trees. The planning department is trying to arrive at an amicable 
solution that would work for the shopping center and the township. The townships' 
biggest concerns are that the hydrangeas are not equivalent of what was there before 



Page 4 of 6 
 

with mature trees that were 15 or 20 feet tall. There have been back and forth 
discussions on what's to be planted (trees or shrubs) considering the power wires. 

Mr. Doe inquired if there were pears trees on the island; Mr. Grenadier assured that 
there were pear trees on all the existing islands at the shopping center. 

Mr. Grenadier was asked about the height of the trees that were removed, in reference 
to the bottom of the power line and if they were touching the line. He stated that if the 
tree doesn’t get trimmed, they are safety concerns and if the property owners do not 
trim them, DTE would be doing the trimming and they have complete access to it. 

Mr. Grenadier stated that the pavement at the shopping center has been replaced and 
85% of the center is brand new. He also shared with the Commission that he was not 
aware about getting building permits in order to make changes to the landscape and the 
need to get an amendment to a site. 

Ms. Peterson inquired with Mr. Iacoangeli if the site plan decision could be tabled, since 
Mr. Grenadier is not happy with Carlisle Wortman recommendations; Mr. Iacoangeli 
stated that Carlisle Wortman's opinion meets the landscape requirements. And there's 
some conditions in there that were offered. The opinion of the Planning Commision as a 
third party to determine what's appropriate would help in arriving to a solution. 

The Commissioners discussed that the parties would need to negotiate and come to an 
agreement. There are rules and regulations in the township for every business and it’s 
the Planning Commission job to enforce the rules. It was suggested to table the decision 
and ask the two parties to get together and come to a recommendation.  

After much discussion the Planning Commission arrived with the following: 

MOTION: Ms. El-Assadi MOVED to approve the landscaping revision to the approved 
site plan for a special site zone PD Plan development located at 1816-2130 Whittaker 
Road (PARCELS K-11-21-200-041, K-11-21-200-040, K-11-21,200-039, K-11-21-200-038, 
K-11-21-200-035, K-11-21-200-034) also known as Paint Creek Crossing with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall meet with the planning department to go over the 
recommendation of Carlisle Wortman. 

2. To replace the roses with more hardy species. 
3. Possibly replace the Bradford pears with other alternatives. 
4. The placement of the trees at 120 as proposed by the applicant and include a 

few more along the length of Whittaker Road at 80-foot replacement as 
negotiated with the planning department and short enough to the power lines. 

 
The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. Tawakkul. 



Page 5 of 6 
 

 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Tawakkul (Yes), Mr. Doe (Yes), Ms. Peterson (Yes), Mr. Sinkule (Yes), 
Ms. El-Assadi (Yes). MOTION PASSED. 

 

B. ELECTION OF PLANNING COMMISSION OFFICERS 

MOTION: Mr. Tawakkul MOVED to approve Chairman for the Planning Commision: Bill 
Sinkule, Vice- Chairman: Elizabeth El-Assadi and Secretary: Larry Doe. The MOTION was 
SECONDED by Ms. Peterson. 

 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Tawakkul (Yes), Mr. Doe (Yes), Ms. Peterson (Yes), Mr. Sinkule (Yes), 
Ms. El-Assadi (Yes). MOTION PASSED. 

 

C. 2021 PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT TO THE BOARD – TO CONSIDER SUBMITTING 
TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES A 2021 PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 125.3819 OF THE MICHIGAN PLANNING ENABLING ACT, PA 33 
OF 2008. 

Mr. Iacoangeli informed the Commission that the Planning Department is gathering 
information for the report that requires information on the number of meetings and the 
items that had actions taken on, attendance records of the membership. This is required 
by the planning Enabling Act of this body Senator report yearly to the legislative body, 
explaining the action that it's taken, as well as its attendance and performance. Once 
the Planning Commission is satisfied with the report, a recommendation for the report 
to be forwarded to the township Board of Trustees at their next regular meeting for 
their consideration. 

MOTION: Ms. El-Assadi MOVED to approve recommendation of the planning 
commission report to the township board. The MOTION was SECONDED by Ms. 
Peterson. 
 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Tawakkul (Yes), Mr. Doe (Yes), Ms. Peterson (Yes), Mr. Sinkule (Yes), 
Ms. El-Assadi (Yes). MOTION PASSED. 

vii. -OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 

A. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED - Michigan Association of planning. 
B. PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS - None 
C. MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE- None 

 



Page 6 of 6 
 

viii. TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

None to Report 

ix. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 

Ms. El-Assadi stated that, at the last ZBA meeting they had a request for variance for having 
a recreational vehicle in the front yard. 

x. TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 

None to Report 

xi. PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 

Mr. Iacoangeli informed the Commission of the zoning ordinance amendments that need to 
be addressed. With the first year of the new zoning ordinance the planning department has 
come across inconsistencies and errors that need to be addressed and the plan to start 
drafting in August and September and bring a batch of amendments in October to be 
reviewed and then be recommended to the township Board of Trustees. There are map 
amendments to be reviewed. There are a lot of upcoming projects. There is a proposal for a 
new gas station at the corner of Hewan Ellsworth which is under review. 

xii. OTHER BUSINESS 

None to Report 

xiii. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION: Ms. Peterson MOVED to adjourn at 7:44 pm. The MOTION was SECONDED by Mr. 
Doe and PASSED by unanimous consent. 

Respectfully Submitted by: Minutes Services 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement 
 

 
Staff Report 

Round Haus Party Shoppe 
5970 Bridge Road 

Preliminary Site Plan 
 
 

September 27, 2022 
 

CASE LOCATION AND SUMMARY 
The Office of Community Standards is in receipt of special conditional use and 
preliminary site plan applications from Mr. Donald George representing the Round Haus 
Pizza and Party Shoppe requesting authorization for the construction of a 6,000 square-
foot convenience store and four (4) fuel pump islands to be located upon the 0.83 acre 
parcel known as 5970 Bridge Road, K-11-24-300-014. 
 
APPLICANT      
Mr. Donald George 
Round Haus Party Shoppe 
5970 Bridge Road 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
 
CROSS REFERENCES 
Zoning Ordinance citations: 

• Article 4, Section 420, Use table 
• Article 9, Site Plan Review  
• Article 10, Special Land Use Review 

 
SUBJECT SITE USE, ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Ypsilanti Township 2040 Master Plan designates this site for neighborhood 
preservation, a designation intended to preserve and strengthen the neighborhoods 
through investment, rehabilitation, and infll. The site is currently zoned NB, 
neighborhood business, which is not in full compliance with the current master plan 
designation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   2  

 
Aerial Photograph – 2020 

 

 
 
 
 
ADJACENT USES, ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
Direction Use Zoning Master Plan 
North Multi-family Residential RM-HD Neighborhood preservation 
South Industrial, Vacant L-M, R-4 Innovation & employment district; Open 

space, neighborhood preservation, & 
cluster development 

East Vacant L-M Innovation & employment district 
West Open space for multi-

family Residential 
RM-HD Neighborhood preservation 



   3  

 
NATURAL FEATURES 
 
Topography: The subject parcel is relatively flat.  
 
Woodlands: The site does not have any woodlands. Two evergreen trees on the 

northern property line are to be preserved and the rest of the 
landscaping on site is to be removed.  

 
Wetlands:  There are no wetlands on the subject property.  
 
Soils:  Per soil boring performed by the development team, the site is 

made up of sand, gravel fill, black coarse sandy fill, brown fine 
sand, gray fine sand, construction debris, clayey sand, and sand fill. 

 
ANALYSIS 
The plan has been reviewed by Township staff and consultants in accordance with our 
usual procedures.  We offer the following comments for your consideration. 
 
Planning Department – Over the past decade, the proposed site plan has gone through 
several iterations. 
 
In 2009, the applicant began the process of obtaining special conditional use and 
preliminary site plan approval for the construction of a similar project.  As part of that 
review process, the Washtenaw County Road Commission required improvements to 
be made to the intersection of Bridge and Textile Roads.  The intersection 
improvements included modifications to the existing traffic signal at a total cost of 
$14,700.00.  In order to assist with the redevelopment of this prime corner, the 
Township agreed to utilize Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) monies to 
fund the improvements.  Unfortunately at that time, the redevelopment project did not 
move forward.  In addition to the intersection improvements, the Township utilizing 
Border to Border and Connecting Community grants provided by the County, 
constructed the 10-foot wide pedestrian path along the Textile Road frontage.  
Unfortunately, the project never moved forward and the preliminary site plan expired. 
 
A preliminary site plan and a special conditional use permit for this project were 
approved with conditions by the Planning Commission on June 28, 2016. Subsequently, 
two dimensional variances were approved with conditions by the Zoning Board of 
Appeals on July 20, 2016. The variances approved were to reduce the minimum rear 
yard setback (along the western property line) from 20-feet to 1-foot and to reduce the 
required interior side yard setback (along the northern property line) from 10-feet to 3-
feet. 
 
After the 2016 approvals, the project did not move forward and the site plan approvals 
expired.  In 2019, the applicant submitted plans for the same project approved in 2016 
and presented with the current request.  The Commission approved the preliminary site 
plan for construction of a 6,000 square foot convenience store and four pump island fuel 
station with the following conditions:  
 



   4  

 
 
 

1. The Planning Commission approves the waiver for reduction in parking from the 
required 27 spaces to 18 spaces. 

2. The Planning Commission approves the reduction in required landscaping. 
3. A note stating the outdoor display or storage of merchandise is prohibited shall 

be placed on the final site plan. 
4. Rooftop screening details need not be provided as long as HVAC equipment and 

other equipment is not placed on the roof. 
5. All final approvals and permits shall be obtained from the Washtenaw County 

Road Commission, Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission prior to 
construction. 

 
Currently, the applicant is seeking a parking waiver for a reduction of parking spaces 
from the required 27 to providing 20.  Additionally, the provided landscaping does not 
meet the ordinance’s landscaping requirements.  No building elevations were provided 
with the current submittal so staff is unable to determine if rooftop screening of HVAC 
equipment would be necessary. 
 
Engineering Department – Engineering consultant Matthew Parks has provided a 
recommendation of approval for preliminary site plan approval in the letter dated August 
24, 2022 for plans with a revision date of July 27, 2022.  Engineer Parks provides minor 
comments that shall be resolved prior to final site plan approval. 
 
Fire Department – Fire Marshal Steve Wallgren approved the preliminary site plan as 
submitting in the letter dated August 22, 2022. 
 
YCUA – Engineering Manager Scott Westover stated in an email on August 18, 2022 
that the plans reviewed in April 2022 for water main construction permit application were 
substantially the same and no concerns were 
 
Road Commission – All final approvals and permits shall be obtained from the 
Washtenaw County Road Commission prior to construction. 
 
Water Resources Commission –All final approvals and permits shall be obtained from 
the Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission prior to construction. 
 
 
Suggested motions:  The following suggested motions and conditions are provided to 
assist the Planning Commission in making the most appropriate motion for this 
application.  The Commission may utilize, add or reject any conditions suggested 
herein, as they deem appropriate. 
 
Motion to table: 
“I move to table the preliminary site plan of Mr. Donald George representing Round 
Haus Pizza and Party Shoppe to permit the construction of a 6,000 square-foot 
convenience store and 4 pump island fuel station located at 5970 Bridge Road, K-11-
24-300-014 in order to further consider the comments made during this meeting.” 



   5  

 
Motion to approve: 
“I move to approve the preliminary site plan of Mr. Donald George representing Round 
Haus Pizza and Party Shoppe to permit the construction of a 6,000 square-foot 
convenience store and 4 pump island fuel station located at 5970 Bridge Road, K-11-
24-300-014.  This motion is further made with the following conditions: 
 

1. The Planning Commission approves the waiver for a reduction in parking from 
the required 27 spaces to ___ spaces. 

2. The Planning Commission approves the reduction in required landscaping. 
3. A note stating that outdoor display or storage of merchandise is prohibited shall 

be placed on the final site plan. 
4. Rooftop screening details shall be provided. 
5. All final approvals and permits shall be obtained from the Washtenaw County 

Road Commission and Washtenaw County Water Resources Commission prior 
to construction. 

 
Motion to deny: 
“I move to deny the preliminary site plan of Mr. Donald George representing Round 
Haus Pizza and Party Shoppe to permit the construction of a 6,000 square-foot 
convenience store and 4 pump island fuel station located at 5970 Bridge Road, K-11-
24-300-014 due to the following reasons:” 
            
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Amy Steffens, AICP 
Planning and Development Coordinator 



Project Name:

Location: 

Date:

Planning Director’s Report

Full Preliminary Site Plan Review # Rezoning
Sketch Preliminary Site Plan Review # Tentative Preliminary Plat
Administrative Preliminary Site Plan Review # Final Preliminary Plat
Detailed Engineering/Final Site Plan Review # Final Plat Process
Special Use Permit Planned Development Stage I
Public Hearing Planned Development Stage II

Contact / Reviewer Consultants, Departments,
& Agencies Approved

Approved 
with 

Conditions
Denied N/A

See email/letter
attached or comments 

below
Jason Iacoangeli,
Planning Director

Township Planning 
Department

Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates Planning Consultant

OHM / Stantec Engineering Consultant
,

Fire Marshal
Township Fire
Department

Dave Bellers, 
Building Official

Township Building 
Department

Brian McCleery, 
Deputy Assessor

Township Assessing 
Department

Scott Westover, 
Engineering Manager

Ypsilanti Community 
Utilities Authority

Gary Streight, Project 
Manager

Washtenaw County Road 
Commission 

Theresa Marsik,
Stormwater Engineer

Washtenaw County Water 
Resources Commission

James Drury, Permit 
Agent

Michigan Department of 
Transportation

Planning Director’s Recommended Action: 

See Directors Comments Below.

See Letter Dated 08/26/2022

See Letter Dated 08/24/2022

See Letter Dated 08/22/2022

See Email Dated 08/18/2022

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

5970 Bridge Rd, Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Round Haus Party Shoppe

09/07/2022

At this time, the Planning Department would recommend Preliminary Site Plan approval based on the attached reviews. The
Applicant has some comments from CWA, OHM, and YTFD that need to be addressed at the time of Final Site Plan.
Further, the applicant will need to contact WCWRC to determine the need for a permit. The last set of plans did not require a
storm water permit. The Applicant should work with YUCA to renew the Act 399 Water Main Permit if needed. At this
time, both CWA and OHM are satisfied that all of the Preliminary Site Plan items have been addressed in order for this
project to be considered by the Planning Commission. This project has been placed on the September 23rd, Planning
Commission Agenda for the required Public Hearing and Preliminary Site Plan Consideration.

1



 

 
 

 
 Date: August 26, 2022 

 

Preliminary Site Plan  
For 

Ypsilanti Charter Township, Michigan 
 
  

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant:               Donald George    
  
Project Name:        Round Haus Party Shoppe    
  
Plan Date:               July 20, 2018 
   
Location:                 5970 Bridge Road & 10191 Textile Road   
  
Zoning:                    NB, Neighborhood Business    
  
Action Requested:  Preliminary Site Plan Approval   
  

PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
An application has been submitted for the demolition of the existing convenience store, which is 3,290 
square feet in floor area, and the construction of a new 6,000 square-foot retail building along with a 4 
pump island fuel station on the parcels located at 5970 Bridge Road and 10191 Textile Road.  The proposed 
construction would take place on what are now two separate parcels, which would be combined to form 
one 0.83-acre parcel. The existing convenience store is located on 5970 Ridge Road.  The parcel on the 
northwest corner of Textile Road and Bridge Road, 10191 Textile Road, is somewhat improved with 
pavement and provides parking for the existing convenience store.   
 
A preliminary site plan and a special conditional use permit for this project were approved with conditions 
by the Planning Commission on June 28, 2016.  Subsequently, two dimensional variances were approved 
with conditions by the Zoning Board of Appeals on July 20, 2016.  The variances approved were to reduce 
the minimum rear yard setback (along the western property line) from 20-feet to 1-foot and to reduce 
the required interior side yard setback (along the northern property line) from 10-feet to 3-feet. 
 
 
 
The special conditional use permit and variances are still valid since these approvals run with the land.  
The applicant received preliminary site plan approval in 2018 and final site plan approval in 2020.  The site 
plan approval expired since construction did not commence within one year of approval.   



Round Haus Party Shoppe PSPR #1 
August 26, 2022 

2 

 
In addition to the two variances, the applicant is seeking two additional deviations from the Planning 
Commission: 

1. Reduction in required parking from the required 27 spaces to 18 spaces.   
2. Reduction in required landscaping  

 
Location of Subject Property:   
 

 
 
 

Surrounding Property Details: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Size of Site: 
 

The site is 0.83 acres.  
 

Current Use of Site: 
 

There are two subject parcels.  5970 Ridge Road is the location of the existing convenience store.  10191 
Textile Road provides parking for the existing convenience store and is somewhat improved with 
pavement in fair to poor condition. 
 
Proposed Use of Site: 
 
The proposed use for the site is a new 6,000 square-foot retail building and a 4 pump island fuel station.  
The retail building will sell general merchandise, beer, wine, soda and liquor and have a full commercial 
kitchen as well.  The kitchen will sell prepared foods such as pizza, sandwiches, barbeque chicken and 
wings.  The 4 pump island fuel station will have 8 self-service gas pumps, covered by a canopy.   
 

Direction Zoning Use 

North RM-HD Multiple Family (High 
Density) Multiple-Family Residential 

South R-4 One Family Residential, L-M 
Logistics and Manufacturing 

Ford Rawsonville Plant, Vacant 

East L-M Logistics and Manufacturing Vacant 

West RM-HD Multiple Family (High 
Density) Open space for Multiple-Family Residential 



Round Haus Party Shoppe PSPR #1 
August 26, 2022 

3 

Items to be Addressed:  None 
 

 
PRIOR APPROVALS 

 
This application received conditional approvals of two-dimensional variances for the site and a special 
conditional use permit.  Special Conditional Use Permit granted by the Planning Commission on June 
28, 2016 for the gas station use.   A variance for the reduction of the required interior side yard setback 
from 10-feet to 3-foot and a variance for the reduction of the required rear yard setback from 20-feet 
to 1-foot by the Zoning Board of Appeals on July 20, 2016.  The site plan submitted addresses those 
conditions of approvals. 
 
The applicant received preliminary site plan approval in 2018 and final site plan approval in 2020.  That 
approval has expired.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
 

MASTER PLAN 
 
Per the master plan, the site is designed as neighborhood preservation.  The intent is to preserve and 
strengthen the neighborhoods through investment, rehabilitation and infill. 
 

Items to be Addressed:  None   
 

NATURAL RESOURCES & UTILITIES 

Topography:  The subject parcel is relatively flat. 
    

Woodlands:  The site does not have any woodlands.  Two evergreen trees on the northern property line 
are to be preserved and the rest of the landscaping on site is to be removed.  

 

Wetlands:  There are no wetlands on the subject property.  
 

Soils:           Per soil boring performed by the development team, the site is made up of sand, gravel 
fill, black coarse sandy fill, brown fine sand, gray fine sand, construction debris, clayey 
sand, and sand fill. 

 

Items to be Addressed: None 
 

HEIGHT, BULK, DENSITY AND AREA 
 
Two dimensional variances were granted for this site by the Zoning Board of Appeals with conditions on 
July 20, 2016.  They are noted along with the bulk requirements set forth in Section 412 in the table below: 
 
 Required / Allowed Provided Complies with 

Ordinance/Variance 
Lot Area None 0.9 acres Complies 

Lot Width None 190 feet on Textile Road 
190 feet on Bridge Road Complies 

Setback 
Front (Bridge Road) 20 feet 40 feet Complies 

Side (northern lot line) 10 feet  3 feet Variance received  
Side (Textile Road) 20 feet 72 feet, 9 inches Complies  



Round Haus Party Shoppe PSPR #1 
August 26, 2022 

4 

Rear (western lot line) 20 foot  1 foot Variance received 
Building Height (Feet) 25 feet  25 feet   Complies 

Building Height (Stories) 2 1 Complies 
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
SITE ACCESS, CIRCULATION, AND TRAFFIC IMPACTS 

 
All existing ingress and egress points will be removed.  The points of access on Textile will be reduced from 
two points of access to a single point.  On Bridge Road, a single point of access with an island and turn 
right only exit is proposed.  The proposed access point will be further away from the driveway for the 
multiple-family complex to the north than the current driveway.  The land across the proposed access 
points on both Textile and Bridge Road is vacant.  
 
The proposed parking spaces are served with drive-aisles 24 to 28 feet in width. The Fire Marshall will 
comment with regards to fire access.   
 
Sheet C2.0 shows auto turn simulations with turn radii for large vehicles negotiating the proposed site.  A 
condition of approval of the special conditional use approval was that all pumps and tanks shall be located 
in an area that allows at least three feet of clearance between the pumps and the turning radius as set 
forth by the Auto-Turn software.   Though very tight, which requires a fueling truck to drive under 
the canopy, the turning radius meet this condition.  
 
The applicant is required to obtain access permits from the Washtenaw County Road Commission.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 

NON-MOTORIZED ACCESS 
 
The applicant is proposing the installation of a 10-foot-wide ADA accessible asphalt walk along the 
sections of Textile and Bridge Road on which the parcel fronts.  In addition, a concrete sidewalk, seven to 
eight feet in width, extends around the building that allows direct connection from the parking to the 
building entrance.   Pedestrian access and circulation is sufficient.  
 
Items to be Addressed: None   
 

PARKING 
 

 Required Provided Complies 
One space for each employee 3 employees* 1 =3 spaces 

18 Spaces Not in compliance 
100 square feet of floor area used 
for cashier, office or retail sale of 
food, beverages and other 
products 

2,424 sq/ft /100=24 spaces 

    
Barrier Free 2 spaces 2 spaces Complies 
Total 27 Spaces 20 Spaces Not in compliance 

 



Round Haus Party Shoppe PSPR #1 
August 26, 2022 

5 

Parking for self-service gasoline filling stations are based on number of employees and square feet of floor 
area used for cashier, office or retail sale of food, beverages and other products in addition to space 
provided at each fuel pump dispenser.  Based on site plan, 27 spaces are required.  The applicant is 
providing 18 spaces.   
 
Township staff in their June 7, 2016 review letter strongly recommended that “the two proposed parallel 
parking spaces located along the north property line be eliminated as they will hinder access to the 
proposed dumpster and will further be encumbered by the proposed landscaping”.  The applicant does 
not wish to remove these spaces, per the reasons cited in their July 20, 2018 letter. In their letter dated 
July 20, 2018, the applicant stated that these will be employee parking spaces.   Due to tight turning radius, 
we agree with Staff’s June 2016 conclusion that those two spots should be removed.  This reduced the 
number of parking spaces to 18.   
 
Since those spaces were removed, based on a 6,000 sq/ft gas station convenience store, the applicant is 
deficient of parking by nine (9) spaces, and only providing 66% of the required parking as set forth in the 
ordinance.  The applicant has three options to consider:  

1. Reduce parking requirement by reducing building size;  
2. Provide more parking on site; or 
3. Seek a parking waiver from the Planning Commission.    

 
The applicant is seeking a parking waiver.  As set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission 
may reduce the parking requirements based upon a finding that there will be a lower demand for parking 
due to one or more of the following:  

(1) Shared parking by multiple uses where there will be a high proportion of multipurpose visits or 
uses have peak parking demands during differing times of the day or days of the week.  

(2) Expectation of walk-in trade due to sidewalk connections to adjacent residential neighborhoods 
or employment centers. 

(3) Availability of other forms of travel such as transit.  
 
Overall, the lack of parking may cause additional site congestion on a very tight site as cars may have to 
wait for parking spots, or maneuver in, out, and around the site to find parking.    The Planning Commission 
granted a parking waiver as part of the 2018/2020 approval.   
 
Items to be Addressed:   Planning Commission to consider the parking waiver.  
 
EXTERIOR LIGHTING 

 
The applicant is proposing the use of four (4) D-Series LED luminaire pole mounted lights, nine (9) LED 
building lights, and 12 lights mounted in the canopy.   The proposed photometrics and fixtures meet 
ordinance requirements. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
LANDSCAPE STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS / FENCES  

We have determined the landscape plan provided does not meet the general intent and requirements of 
the zoning ordinance as shown in the table below. 
 



Round Haus Party Shoppe PSPR #1 
August 26, 2022 

6 

 Required Provided Materials 
Needed 

Street Yard Landscaping:  
1 large dec tree per 40 lf 
of frontage, 1 orn tree per 
100 lf of frontage, 1 shrub 
per 10 lf of frontage 

Textile Road at 160 lineal feet:  
4 dec trees, 2 orn trees, 16 
shrubs 

4 dec trees, 2 orn 
tree, 16 shrubs 4 dec trees  

Street Yard Landscaping:  
1 large dec tree per 40 lf of 
frontage, 1 orn tree per 
100 lf of frontage, 1 shrub 
per 10 lf of frontage 

Bridge Road at 160 lineal feet:  
4 dec trees, 2 orn trees, 16 
shrubs 

4 dec trees, 2 orn 
tree, 16 shrubs 4 dec trees  

Parking Lot:  
1 large dec tree per 3000 
sf of pavement 

20,280 sq/ft = 7 dec trees 7 dec trees 7 dec trees 

 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
BUILDING ELEVATIONS AND FLOOR PLAN 

 
The applicant did not provide a building elevations and floor plans with this application.  The 2020 
approved site plan included building elevations and a floor plan.  The primary building materials include 
brick and split face block.  The elevations meet or exceed the zoning requirements.  A color rendering was 
been provided.   
 
The applicant should confirm if the same elevations and material use is proposed.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Confirm if the same elevations and material use is proposed 
 
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE 

 
The site plan indicates that a dumpster enclosure will be attached to the northern façade of the retail 
building. The dumpster is screened with a masonry wall that will match the building.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
DETENTION/RETENTION POND 

 
The applicant proposes underground detention to be located underneath the parking lot.  Detention 
calculations will be reviewed by the Township Engineer and Washtenaw County Water Resources 
Department.    
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
The applicant is making a significant investment in the site and updating a much-needed commercial 
operation to the area.  However, in addition to the two setback variances granted by the ZBA in 2016, the 



Round Haus Party Shoppe PSPR #1 
August 26, 2022 

7 

applicant is seeking a Planning Commission to reduce the required parking from the required 27 spaces 
to 18 spaces.  This was approved as part of the 2020 approval.   
 
We recommend that the Planning Commission consider the requested deviations in light of the overall 
site plan.  If the Planning Commission finds that the two deviations are warranted, site plan approval shall 
be conditions upon:  

1. Confirm if the same elevations and material use is proposed. 
2. Applicant shall enter into a special conditional use agreement outlining the conditions noted 

within any forthcoming motion. 
3. A note should be added to the site plan that outdoor display or storage of merchandise is 

prohibited. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

 

August 24, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Jason Iacoangeli 
Township Planning Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
RE: Round Haus Party Shoppe 
 Preliminary Site Plan Review #1 
 
 
Dear Mr. Iacoangeli: 
 
We have completed the first preliminary site plan review of the plans dated October 5, 2017, with a revision date of July 
27, 2022, for the proposed Round Haus Party Shoppe at 5970 Bridge Road. The plans were prepared by Triumph 
Engineering & Design, Inc, received by OHM Advisors on August 10, 2022, and reviewed with respect to the Ypsilanti 
Township Engineering Standards and Design Specifications.  
 
At this time, the plans are recommended for approval contingent on the following comments (Section B) being 
addressed prior to submission of plans for detailed engineering review and approval.  
 
A brief description of the project has been provided below (Section A), followed by our comments (Sections B and C) 
and a list of anticipated required permits and approvals (Section D). Comments in Section C are detailed in nature, do 
not influence the overall site layout, and can be addressed during the detailed engineering drawing submittal. 
 

A. PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
It should be noted that several variations of this site plan have been submitted over the years, but the plans have 
not been fully approved. The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing building located at 5970 Bridge 
Road and construct an approximately 6,000 square-foot party shop building with 18 parking stalls, two (2) of 
which are proposed as ADA parking spaces. A gas station including four pump stations (8 filling stations) with 
a canopy will also be constructed.  
 
Two (2) entrance drives are being proposed to the site from Bridge Road and Textile Road. An underground 
detention basin is also being proposed for stormwater management, including a dry-well and a mechanical 
forebay. A sanitary sewer service is being proposed from the existing sanitary along the north side of Textile 
Road. A water main extension, including a service to the building, a hydrant, and a dead-end stub for future 
connection, is being proposed from the existing water main along the south side of Textile Road.  
 

B. PRELMINARY SITE PLAN COMMENTS 
 
1. The applicant shall obtain Building Department approval for the proposed phasing plan. Currently it appears 

that Phase 2 will partially demo the western end of the existing building. It is speculated that this partial 
demo is proposed to facilitate the existing store remaining operational for customer use during construction. 
Additionally, due to the limited confines of the site, the applicant shall provide a clear and concise phasing 
plan for each phase to facilitate a thorough understanding. 
 



Mr. Iacoangeli – Round Haus Party Shoppe – SP #1 
August 24, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 

 

2. The plans shall include the existing ingress stairs located at the northern perimeter of the site. The location 
shall also callout necessary rehabilitation efforts to promote the safety of pedestrians. 

 
C. PRELIMINARY DETAILED ENGINEERING COMMENTS: 

 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 

 
1. The applicant shall review the proposed elevations within the profiled Terre Arch Storage Tank (Sheet C4.1). 

It is recommended that inverts for the proposed tank be reviewed to accommodate for the proposed bottom 
of tank design. Furthermore, the applicant shall review the tank profile to be consistent with the proposed 
top of tank elevation and to avoid confusion in the field. 

 

UTILITIES 

2. The applicant shall update Sheet C4.3 to include a restrained plug/cap and thrust block instead of a bulkhead 
at the terminal end of the proposed water main. 
 

GENERAL 
 
3. A copy of the referenced existing DTE easement shall be provided to this office for the project file prior to 

the preconstruction meeting. The applicant shall also provide a copy of the temporary construction 
easement, if required from the adjacent property, to this office for review.  

 

D. REQUIRED PERMITS/APPROVALS 

The following is a listing of the permits and other outside agency reviews that are anticipated to be required for 
the construction of this project. Copies of all permits and outside agency reviews and/or waiver letters shall be 
sent to the Ypsilanti Township Office of Community Standards Department, and Orchard, Hiltz, and McCliment 
(email: matt.parks@ohm-advisors.com).  
 
 The Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA): Part 211 and Part 55 permits for the 

proposed underground storage tank and the gas station will be required. 
 Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE): An EGLE Act 399 Permit will be required for 

construction of all public water main improvements. 
 Washtenaw County Road Commission (WCRC): Review and approval of the proposed entrance drives 

will be required. A permit will be required for all work proposed within the Bridge Road and Textile Road 
Rights-of-Way. 

 Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner’s Office (WCWRC): Review and approval of the 
proposed stormwater management system will be required.  

 Ypsilanti Township Office of Community Standards: A Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control (SESC) 
permit will be required.  

 Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority (YCUA): YCUA will be required to review and approve all items 
related to the public water and public sewer connections, including the sanitary sewer basis of design. 

 Ypsilanti Township Fire Department: Review and approval of site circulation and fire protection will be 
required.  

 Ypsilanti Township Building Department: Review and approval will be required. 
 Ypsilanti Township’s Planner: Review and approval will be required.  
 If dewatering should be needed, the contractor/applicant shall be responsible for obtaining necessary 

approvals from the Township and the Township Engineer, permission from all impacted adjacent properties 
and/or permits from MDOT, WCWRC’s Office, or the WCRC. 

 Record plans shall be provided to the Township Engineer, following the completion of construction of all 
project phases.   

mailto:matt.parks@ohm-advisors.com


Mr. Iacoangeli – Round Haus Party Shoppe – SP #1 
August 24, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me at (734) 522-6711. 
 
Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
 
 
_____________________________       
Matthew D. Parks, P.E.     Elliot R. Smith, P.E. 
 
MDP/ERS 

 
 
cc: Amy Steffens, Township Planning and Development Coordinator 
 Fletcher Reyher, Township Staff Planner 
 Jane Carr, Township Clerk 

File  
 

P:\0000_0100\SITE_YpsilantiTwp\2022\0098221080_Round House_5970 Bridge Rd\MUNI\01_SITE\Review #1\Round Haus_SP#1_2022-08-24.docx 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FIRE DEPARTMENT 
BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 
 

222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 

 

  

August 22, 2022 
 
Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
  
RE:  Preliminary (non-residential) Site Plan Review #2 
 
 Project Name:    Round Haus Party Shoppe 
 Project Location:    5970 Bridge Rd. Ypsilanti Township, MI 48197  
 Plan Date:     7/27/2022  
 Applicable Codes:  IFC 2018 
 Engineer:   Triumph Engineering 
 Engineer Address:  10775 S. Saginaw St. Suite D Grand Blanc, MI 48439  
  
 

Status of Review 

Status of review: Approved Conditionally (see comments) 

All pages were reviewed. 

 

Site Coverage - Access 

Comments: An unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 13 feet 6 inches is required for the 
fuel pump canopy.  I was unable to find the canopy’s clearance height referenced in the plan.   

 

 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
  Steve Wallgren, Fire Marshal 
  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 
  CFPS, CFI I 







































































CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-3943 
 

 
Staff Report 

Circular Investments, LLC 
924 Minion Street 

Preliminary Site Plan Review 
 

September 27, 2022 
 

CASE LOCATION AND SUMMARY 
The Office of Community Standards is in receipt of a Preliminary Site Plan for a new 
parking lot of approximately 33,000 sq. ft. to use as a trailer storage at 924 Minion Street, 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 Parcel #K-11-10-280-020. The site is currently used as a freight 
terminal and the proposed project would enhance business operations of the site with 
overnight parking for up to nine (9) dump trucks and twenty-seven (27) double trailer –
semi-trucks.  
 
APPLICANT 
Amjad Issa 
2416 E. Michigan Ave 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 
SUBJECT SITE USE, ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  
The subject site is a 4 acre parcel, zoned I-T - Innovation and Technology.  
 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-3943 
 

 
CROSS REFERENCES 
Zoning Ordinance citations: 

• Article 4 – District Regulations: Sec. 420. – Residential Use Table: 
• Article 9 – Site Plan Review: Sex. 903. – Site Plan Review Process:  
• Article 12 – Access, Parking, and Loading: Sec. 1205. – Parking Requirements: 
• Article 13 – Site Design Standards: Sec. 1301. Landscape Requirements:  

 
ANALYSIS 
The plan has been reviewed by Township staff and consultants in accordance with our 
procedures: 
  
Planning Consultants (Carlisle/Wortman Associates): CWA reviewed the Preliminary 
Site Plan in their letter dated August 18, 2022 and recommended Preliminary Site Plan 
approval with the condition that the applicant provides the Office of Community Standards 
with a revised landscape plan that complies with ordinance requirements.  
 
Engineering Consultants (OHM): The Township Engineer recommended approval for 
Preliminary Site Plan approval in their September 2, 2022 review letter. Plans have been 
revised in the latest submittal of the plans dated August 15th 2022 to address the 
Engineering comments. 
 
Ypsilanti Community Utilities Authority: YCUA reviewing agent Scott Westover stated 
in an email August 19, 2022 that no new utilities were being proposed to the existing site 
so YCUA had no objections. 
 
Ypsilanti Township Fire Department: YTFD reviewing agent Steve Wallgren 
recommended approval in a letter dated June 24, 2022. 
 
Washtenaw County Water Resource Commission: WCWRC reviewing agent Theresa 
M. Marsik offered comments in a letter dated June 23, 2022. Further review is needed of 
the latest submittal of plans dated August 15th, 2022.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-3943 
 

 
Suggested motions:  The following suggested motions and conditions are provided to 
assist the Planning Commission in making the most appropriate motion for this 
application.  The Commission may utilize, add or reject any conditions suggested herein, 
as they deem appropriate. 
 

Motion to table:  
“I move to table the request for Preliminary Site Plan approval for the Circular 
Investments, LLC parking lot addition for the storage of dump trucks and double-trailer 
semi-trucks located at 924 Minion Street, parcel K-11-10-280-020, to consider the 
comments presented by the Planning Commission during discussion of the project” 
 
Motion to approve:  
“I move to approve the request for a  Preliminary Site Plan approval for the Circular 
Investments, LLC parking lot addition for the storage of dump trucks and double-trailer 
semi-trucks located at 924 Minion Street, parcel K-11-10-280-020 with the following 
conditions: 

1. Applicant shall address remaining review comments from consultants, agencies, 
and departments. 

2. Applicant shall provide the Planning Department with a revised landscaping plan 
that complies with ordinance requirements. 

3. Applicant shall obtain all applicable agency permits. 
4. Applicant shall satisfy the comments made in the June 23, 2022 letter submitted 

by the WCWRC.  
 
Motion to deny:  
“I move to deny the request for Preliminary Site Plan approval for the Circular 
Investments, LLC parking lot addition for the storage of dump trucks and double-trailer 
semi-trucks located at 924 Minion Street, parcel K-11-10-280-020, due to the following 
reasons: 
 
 1._________________________________________________________________ 
  
 2._________________________________________________________________ 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

Jason Iacoangeli 
Jason Iacoangeli, AICP 
Planning Director 



























Project Name:

Location: 

Date:

Planning Director’s Report

Full Preliminary Site Plan Review # Rezoning
Sketch Preliminary Site Plan Review # Tentative Preliminary Plat
Administrative Preliminary Site Plan Review # Final Preliminary Plat
Detailed Engineering/Final Site Plan Review # Final Plat Process
Special Use Permit Planned Development Stage I
Public Hearing Planned Development Stage II

Contact / Reviewer
Consultants, Departments,

& Agencies
Approved

Approved 
with 

Conditions
Denied N/A

See email/letter
attached or comments 

below
Jason Iacoangeli,
Planning Director

Township Planning 
Department

Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates

Planning Consultant

OHM / Stantec Engineering Consultant

,
Fire Marshal

Township Fire
Department

Dave Bellers, 
Building Official

Township Building 
Department

Brian McCleery, 
Deputy Assessor

Township Assessing 
Department

Scott Westover, 
Engineering Manager

Ypsilanti Community 
Utilities Authority

Gary Streight, Project 
Manager

Washtenaw County Road 
Commission 

Theresa Marsik,
Stormwater Engineer

Washtenaw County Water 
Resources Commission

James Drury, Permit 
Agent

Michigan Department of 
Transportation

Planning Director’s Recommended Action: 



 
Date:  June 24, 2022 

August 18, 2022 
 

Preliminary Site Plan  
For 

Ypsilanti Charter Township, Michigan 
  
 

                                                                 
Applicant:                                          Amjad Issa    
                                                                 
Project Name:                                   Circular Investments – 924 Minion Street    
                                                                 
Plan Date:                                           August 15, 2022 
                                                                               
Location:                                             924 Minion Street  
                                                                 
Zoning:                                                 I-T, Innovation and Technology   
                                                                 
Action Requested:                              Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
                                                         
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

 
An application has been submitted to expand the existing parking lot at 924 Minion Street in 
order to overnight park up to nine (9) dump truck and twenty-seven (27) double trailer semi-
trucks.   The site is currently used as a freight terminal.  Other site improvements including 
installation of a retention pond and additional site landscaping.  The applicant proposes a 
secondary point of access off Minion Street.  R and L Carriers will replace Minion Street as part 
of their approval.  
 
The applicant does not propose any improvements to the existing building on site and the existing 
cell tower and associated buildings will remain.  Freight terminal is a permitted use in this district.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Circular Investments 
August 18, 2022 

2 
 

 
 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
 

 
 
General Location of proposed work: 

 
Surrounding Property Details: 
 
Surrounding uses and zoning to the entire property include:  
 

Direction Zoning Use 



Circular Investments 
August 18, 2022 

3 
 

North I-T, Innovation and Technology R and L Truck Distribution  
South R-5, Single Family Residential Single Family Residential  
East  I-T, Innovation and Technology R and L Truck Distribution 
West I-T, Innovation and Technology Truck Storage  

  
Size of Site: 
The total area of the subject site is +/-4 acres 
 
Current Use of Site: 
The site is currently used as freight terminal / warehousing  
 
Proposed Use of Site: 
Freight terminal / warehousing  
 
NATURAL RESOURCES 

 
The area of the proposed work is mostly gravel.  The applicant notes that no trees will be 
removed.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  None  
 
SETBACKS 

 
The proposed parking lot addition complies with the required setbacks.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None 
 
SITE ACCESS, CIRCULATION, AND TRAFFIC IMPACTS 

 
The applicant proposes a secondary point of access of Minion Street.  The applicant has applied 
a fire truck template for fire access.   
 
As noted, R and L Carriers will replace Minion Street as part of their approval.  The applicant 
shows curb and other improvements along Minion Street.  The applicant will complete their 
noted improvements.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Fire access to be reviewed by Fire Marshall. 
 
LIGHTING 

 
The applicant does not propose any new lighting.  If new lighting is proposed applicant shall 
submit a photometric plan that complies with ordinance requirements.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None  



Circular Investments 
August 18, 2022 

4 
 

 
LANDSCAPING AND OPEN SPACE STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS 

 
  Required Provided Complies 
Stamped:  Plan 
prepared and 
stamped by 
registered Landscape 
Architect 

Plan prepared and 
stamped by 
registered Landscape 
Architect 

Plan was not stamped 
by a registered 
architect 
 
 
 

Complies  

Street Yard 
Landscaping: A 
minimum of one large 
deciduous tree shall be 
planted for each 40 
lineal feet of frontage, 
PLUS one ornamental 
tree shall be planted for 
each 100 lineal feet of 
frontage, PLUS one 
shrub shall be planted 
for each ten lineal feet 
of frontage.  
 

283 l.f / 40 = 7 trees 
 
283 l.f / 100 = 3 
ornamental 
 
283 l.f / 10 = 28 
shrubs  

9 street trees  
 
0 ornamental 
 
 
0 shrubs 

Deficient in 
ornamental trees 

Parking Lot Trees: 1 
tree every 3,000 square 
feet. 

Square Footage not 
provided 

0 Does not comply   

Fence Chain link fence to match Complies  
General: 1 tree per 
1000 sf of lawn area 
and 1 shrub per 500 sf 
of lawn area   

 Square Footage not 
provided 

0   Does not comply   

 
Landscape plan does not comply with ordinance requirements.   
 
Items to be Addressed: Provide revised landscape plan 
 
 
STORMWATER AND UTILITIES 

 
We defer to the Washtenaw County Water Resource Commission, Township Engineer and YUCA 
regarding stormwater and utilities.  
 
We defer to the appropriate agencies for further comment of stormwater and utilities. 
 



Circular Investments 
August 18, 2022 

5 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We recommend preliminary site plan approval with the condition that the applicant provide a 
revised landscape plan that complies with ordinance requirements.  
 
 
  

 
 



 
 
 

 

September 2, 2022 
 
 
Mr. Jason Iacoangeli 
Township Planning Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
RE: Trailer Storage Parking Lot 
 924 Minion Street 
 Site Plan Review #2 
 
 
Dear Mr. Iacoangeli: 
 
We have completed the second site plan review of the plans dated May 23, 2022, with a revision date of August 15, 
2022, and received by OHM Advisors on August 18, 2022.  
 
At this time, the plans are recommended for preliminary site plan approval.  
 
A brief description of the project has been provided below (Section A), followed by our comments (Section B and C) 
and a list of anticipated required permits and approvals (Section D). Comments in Section C are detailed in nature, do 
not influence the overall site layout, and can be addressed during the detailed engineering drawing submittal. 
 

A. PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 

The applicant is proposing a new parking lot of approximately 33,000 sq-ft to use as trailer storage at 924 
Minion Street. Roughly one-half of the existing gravel is proposed for removal, with the remaining gravel 
surface being replaced by asphalt pavement. The applicant will maintain two points of access on-site, both 
located off Minion Street. 
 
The applicant is proposing the addition of a sediment forebay on the northeast corner with underground 
infiltration underneath the proposed asphalt parking lot.  
 

B. SITE PLAN COMMENTS 

 
Paving and Grading 

 
1. The applicant shall provide additional spot elevations within the proposed parking lot to verify a minimum 

slope of 1% is achieved throughout. The applicant has sufficiently addressed the comment. 
 
2. The applicant shall widen the proposed driveway to the parking lot to a minimum 31’ width, from edge of 

metal to edge of metal. The applicant has sufficiently addressed the comment. 
 

 
 
 
 



Mr. Iacoangeli – 924 Minion Street – Site Plan Review #2 
September 2, 2022  
Page 2 of 3 

 

C. PRELIMINARY DETAILED ENGINEERING PLAN COMMENTS  

The following comments shall be addressed by the applicant during the detailed engineering drawing submittal, 
and do not affect the recommendation for approval to the Township of Ypsilanti Planning Commission. It 
should be noted that this is not an all-inclusive list and additional comments may be generated as new information 
is presented. 
 
1. The applicant shall provide profiles for all utilities (water, sanitary, and storm sewer) on the plans. These 

profiles shall include diameters, materials, lengths, slopes, and services. In addition, the hydraulic grade lines 
shall be clearly indicated on all storm sewer profiles.  

 
2. The applicant shall provide a utility crossing table with the engineering submittal to ensure proper clearance 

between existing and proposed utilities.  
 

3. The applicant shall provide proposed drainage area and storm water calculations to ensure that the site can 
be properly managed. Additionally, the applicant shall show all roof drains on the plan to verify the drainage 
course.   

 
4. In accordance with Note #4 on Sheet 6, the applicant shall submit a manufacturer's specification for all pipe 

installed under paved surfaces. 
 
5. We defer the maintenance of the existing southeast emergency vehicle access to Oaklawn Blvd to the 

township fire department. The site plan submittal includes various trees that would block the emergency 
access point. 

 
6. The applicant shall conform the entire site (total area: 4.02 acres) to current WCWRC Stormwater 

Management Rules and Guidelines. 
 

7. The applicant shall verify that the pipe directions in the structure table on sheet 6 match those called out in 
the plan view. 

 
8. The applicant shall include all pavement, sidewalk, and curb and gutter details within the plan set. 

 
9. The applicant shall provide an engineer’s estimate of probable cost for the project with the final detailed 

engineering submittal. 
 

 
D. REQUIRED PERMITS & APPROVALS 

 
The following outside agency reviews and permits will be required for the project. Copies of any 
correspondence between the applicant and the review agencies, as well as the permit or waiver, shall be sent to 
both the Township and OHM Advisors (email: matt.parks@ohm-advisors.com).  
 
 Ypsilanti Township Fire Department: Review and approval is required. 
 Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner’s Office (WCWRC): Review and approval may 

be required. 
 Ypsilanti Township Office of Community Standards: A Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control permit 

shall be secured from the Ypsilanti Township Office of Community Standards.  
 The Township’s Planner will inspect the landscaping for this site.  
 If dewatering should be needed, the contractor/applicant shall be responsible for obtaining necessary 

approvals from the Township and the Township Engineer, permission from all impacted adjacent properties 
and/or permits from MDOT, WCWRC’s Office, or the WCRC. 

 Record plans shall be provided to the Township Engineer following the completion of construction.  

mailto:matt.parks@ohm-advisors.com


Mr. Iacoangeli – 924 Minion Street – Site Plan Review #2 
September 2, 2022  
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact this office at (734) 466-4580. 
 
Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
 
 
_____________________________       
Matthew D. Parks, P.E.     Elliot R. Smith, P.E. 
 
MDP/ERS 
 
cc: Amy Steffens, Township Planning and Development Coordinator 
 Fletcher Reyher, Township Staff Planner 

Doug Winters, Township Attorney 
File   

 
P:\0000_0100\SITE_YpsilantiTwp\2022\0098221060_924 Minion Street_Trailer Storage\MUNI\01_SITE\Review #2\924 Minion_SP2.docx 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FIRE DEPARTMENT 
BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 
 

222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 

 

  

June 24, 2022 
 
Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
  
RE:  Preliminary (non-residential) Site Plan Review #1 
 
 Project Name:    Circular Investments, LLC 
 Project Location:    924 Minion St. Ypsilanti, MI 48198  
 Plan Date:     5/23/2022  
 Applicable Codes:  IFC 2018 
 Engineer:   Washtenaw Engineering 
 Engineer Address:  3526 West Liberty Rd. Ann Arbor, MI 48106  
  
 

Status of Review 

Status of review: Approved as Submitted 

Pages Cover, 3, 5 and 8 were reviewed. 

 

Site Coverage - Access 

Comments: Complies with IFC 2018 

 

. 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
  Steve Wallgren, Fire Marshal 
  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 
  CFPS, CFI I 





 EVAN N. PRATT, P.E.                     Harry Sheehan 
               Chief Deputy Water Resources Commissioner   
 Water Resources Commissioner  
 705 N Zeeb Road  Scott Miller P.E. 

 Ann Arbor, MI 48103  Deputy Water Resources Commissioner

 734-222-6860 

  Theo Eggermont 

 Drains@washtenaw.org  Public Works Director 

Washtenaw.org/Drains 

 

June 23, 2022 

 

 

Mr. Joseph Maynard, P.E. 

Washtenaw Engineering 

P.O. Box 1128 

3526 West Liberty Road, Suite 400 

Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106 

RE: Circular Investments 

(fka Cobb Express) 

Ypsilanti Township, Michigan 

WCWRC Project No. 3368 
 

 

Dear Mr. Maynard: 

 

This office has reviewed the site plans for the above-referenced project to be located in 

Ypsilanti Township.  These plans have a date of May 23, 2022 and were received on June 

8, 2022.  As a result of our review, we would like to offer the following comments: 

 

1. The proposed construction has changed since the previously approved plans, that 

were dated July 7, 2021. The engineer’s certificate of outlet should be revised and 

submitted to our office for review. 

2. The runoff calculations must be updated to reflect the currently proposed cover type 

and areas covered. 

3. Based on the proposed grading, the proposed curb cut on the east side of the 

entrance drive does not appear likely to fully direct the sheet flow from the proposed 

pavement into the sediment forebay.  Modifying the grading slightly and providing 

an additional curb cut at a point on the north edge of the proposed pavement area 

is suggested. 

4. Please see the attached invoice for the drain use permit fees and remit them upon 

receipt. Once received, the permit application will be scheduled for review. 

 

At your convenience, please send us a complete set of revised plans and the additional 

information requested above so that we may continue our review.  If you have any 

questions, please contact our office. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Theresa M. Marsik, P.E. 

Storm Water Engineer 
(permit\Circular Investments (fka Cobb Express rev4) 

 

cc: Jason Iacoangeli, Ypsilanti Township Planning Director 

Belinda Kingsley, Ypsilanti Township Planning & Zoning Coordinator 

Doug Winters, McLain and Winters 

Elliot Smith, Ypsilanti Township Engineer (OHM)  

mailto:Drains@washtenaw.org









	09-27-2022-Planning-Commission-Agenda
	Charter Township of Ypsilanti _August 9, 2022, minutes
	09272022_Round Haus Staff Report to PC
	Case Location and Summary
	Applicant
	Cross References
	Subject Site Use, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan
	Adjacent Uses, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan
	Natural Features
	Analysis

	09-07-2022 Directors Report
	08-26-22 CWA Review.pdf
	GENERAL INFORMATION


	2021-03-25-Site-Plan-Review-Application_signed
	round haus
	Staff Report 924 Minion
	Case Location and Summary
	Applicant
	Subject Site Use, Zoning and Comprehensive Plan
	Cross References
	Analysis




